
Michelle Morris, 
Managing Director / Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr 

 
T: 01495 357788 Ext./Est: 7788 
 
E: committee.services@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk 
 
Contact:/Cysylltwch â: Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 

 

 
 

 

 
 

THIS IS A MEETING WHICH THE PUBLIC ARE ENTITLED TO ATTEND 

 
Dydd Gwener, 28 Chwefror 2020 Dydd Gwener, 28 Chwefror 2020 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
PWLLGOR CRAFFU GWASANAETHAU CYMUNEDOL 
 
A meeting of the Pwllgor Craffu Gwasanaethau Cymunedol will be held in 
Siambr y Cyngor, Canolfan Ddinesig on Dydd Mercher, 4ydd Mawrth, 2020 at 
11.30 am. 
 
Please note that a pre and post meeting will be held 30 minutes prior to 
the start and following the conclusion of the meeting for members of the 
committee. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
Michelle Morris  
Managing Director 
 
AGENDA Pages 
 
1.   CYFIEITHU AR Y PRYD 

 
 

 Mae croeso i chi ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, 
mae angen o leiaf 3 diwrnod gwaith o hysbysiad ymlaen 
llaw os dymunwch wneud hynny. Darperir gwasanaeth 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



cyfieithu ar y pryd os gwneir cais.  
 

2.   YMDDIHEURIADAU 
 

 

 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau. 
 

 

3.   DATGANIADAU BUDDIANT A GODDEFEBAU 
 

 

 Derbyn datganiadau buddiant a goddefebau. 
 

 

4.   COFNODION PWYLLGOR CRAFFU 
GWASANAETHAU CYMUNEDOL 
 

5 - 12 

 Derbyn cofnodion y cyfarfod o’r Pwyllgor Craffu 
Gwasanaethau Cymunedol a gynhaliwyd ar 16 Ionawr 
2020. 
 
(Dylid nodi y cyflwynir y cofnodion er pwyntiau cywirdeb 
yn unig). 
 

 

EITEM(AU) EITHREDIG 
Derbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) dilynol sydd ym marn y swyddog 
priodol yn eitem(au) eithriedig gan roi ystyriaeth i’r prawf budd cyhoeddus 
ac y dylai’r wasg a’r cyhoedd gael eu heithrio o’r cyfarfod (mae’r rheswm 
am yr eithriad ar gael ar restr a gedwir gan y swyddog priodol). 
 
5.   ADOLYGIAD GWASANAETH 

 
13 - 50 

 Ystyried adroddiad y Prif Swyddog Masnachol. 
 

 

 
To: J. Wilkins (Cadeirydd) 

C. Meredith (Is-gadeirydd) 
P. Baldwin 
M. Cook 
G. L. Davies 
L. Elias 
S. Healy 
W. Hodgins 
J. Holt 
H. McCarthy 
J. P. Morgan 
G. Paulsen 
T. Sharrem 
B. Summers 
L. Winnett 
 

 All other Members (for information) 

Page 2



Manager Director 
Chief Officers 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNTY BOROUGH OF BLAENAU GWENT 
 

REPORT TO: THE CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF THE COMMUNITY 
SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

  
SUBJECT: COMMUNITY SERVICE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  

16th JANUARY, 2020 
  
REPORT OF: DEMOCRATIC SUPPORT OFFICER 

 

 
PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR J. WILKINS (CHAIR) 
 

Councillors C. Meredith 
  G.L. Davies 
  L. Elias 
  S. Healy 
  W. Hodgins 
  J. Holt 
  H. McCarthy 
  T. Sharrem 
  B. Summers                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

 
WITH:  Corporate Director Community Services & 
    Regeneration 
   Head of Community Services 
   Service Manager Community Services 
   Team Leader Waste & Fleet Management 
   Communications, Marketing & Customer Access 

Manager 
   Ecologist 
   Scrutiny & Democratic Officer/Advisor  
 

 
ITEM 

 
SUBJECT 
 

 
ACTION 

No. 1 SIMULTANEOUS TRANSLATION 
 
It was noted that no requests had been received for the 
simultaneous translation service. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



No. 2 APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received for Councillors M. Cook 
and G. Paulsen. 
 

 

No. 3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISPENSATIONS 
 
Councillor W. Hodgins declared an interest in the following 
item: 
 
Item No. 7 Local Nature Reserve Designation and 
Declaration. 
 

 

No. 4 COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
The minutes of the Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
held on 5th December, 2020 were submitted. 
 
The Committee AGREED that the minutes be accepted as a 
true record of proceedings. 
 

 

No. 5 ACTION SHEET – 5th DECEMBER, 2019 
 
The action sheet arising from the meeting of the Community 
Services Scrutiny Committee held on 5th December, 2019 
was submitted, whereupon:- 
 
Bridging the Gap – Trade Waste Service – Strategic 
Business Review 
 
A Member referred to the responses listed on Appendix 6 and 
expressed concerned regarding the number of responses 
received from Education.  The Service Manager Community 
Services undertook to investigate. 
 
The Committee AGREED, subject to the foregoing, that the 
action sheet be noted. 
 

 
 
 

No. 6 EXECUTIVE DECISION SHEET 
 
Consideration was given to the Executive Decision Sheet. 
 
The Committee AGREED that the Executive Decision Sheet 
be noted. 

 

Page 6



No. 7 LOCAL NATURE RESERVE DESIGNATION AND 
DECLARATION 
 
Consideration was given to report of the Head of Community 
Services. 
 
At the invitation of the Chair, the Ecologist presented the 
report which sought approval for the designation and 
declaration of five Local Nature Reserves, namely Beaufort 
Hill Ponds & Woodland, Central Valley, Garden City, Parc 
Bryn Bach and Sirhowy Hill Woodlands.   
 
Blaenau Gwent currently had seven designated Local Nature 
Reserves totalling 120.3 hectares.  Declaration and 
designation of the sites contributed to the Council’s 
Biodiversity and Ecosystem Resilience Forward Plan (2019-
22) which was developed in order to comply with the 
requirements of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.   
 
The Officer went through the report and highlighted points 
contained therein. 
 
A Member said he welcomed the report and supported the 
proposed areas.  However, in designating these areas, public 
opinion was that the Council was responsible for future 
maintenance, and with limited resources the Council was 
struggling to maintain existing rights of way etc. 
 
In response the Officer confirmed that the areas were within 
Council ownership and already part of our day to day work.  
The Council were already working in partnership with 
community groups to maintain and enhance these areas, and 
Welsh Government were also looking to get more people 
involved, and promoting nature recovery issues through 
grant funded projects, e.g. A Resilient Greater Gwent. 
 
A Member said he fully supported the proposals and was 
happy to support Option 2. 
 
Another Member referred to Parc Bryn Bach and expressed 
concern that designating the area may have a detrimental 
impact on any future proposals and subsequent planning 
applications submitted.  He therefore proposed that the report 

 

Page 7



be amended, and that Parc Bryn Bach be removed at this 
time, pending discussions with Aneurin Leisure Trust. 
 
The Officer said Parc Bryn Bach was already designated a 
SINC area so Development Management Procedure 14 
would apply in terms of any future planning applications. 
 
The Corporate Director Regeneration & Community Services 
explained that designation of LNR would not preclude any 
future development.  However, such designation would have 
the advantage of enhancing and protecting the area, and also 
provide opportunities to access resources to support this 
work. 
 
A Member referred to the funding secured from the Enabling 
Natural Resources and Well-being Grant to deliver 12 sub-
projects across the five Local Authority areas in Greater 
Gwent, and asked how much had been allocated for Blaenau 
Gwent. 
 
The Ecologist confirmed that the amount was approximately 
£210k for the 5 Greater Gwent Local Authority areas.  
Blaenau Gwent would receive approximately £40k, however, 
it was a project running on agile terms and the whole project 
budget had yet to be allocated. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding maintenance when the 
Officer said designation of LNR was about ensuring 
protection of these areas.  Maintenance of pathways etc., 
would always be challenging in terms of the budget, but it was 
about prioritising, and partnership working, and hopefully 
funding could be directed towards these issues. 
 
The Chair asked whether designation of LNR would be 
subject to public consultation, and the Officer confirmed that 
the legislation did not require public consultation, but it would 
form part of the LDP Deposit Plan process. 
 
The Chair then referred to the Options for Recommendations, 
and a Member proposed Option 2, with an amendment that 
Parc Bryn Bach be removed from the list pending further 
discussions with ALT. 
 
The proposal was seconded. 

Page 8



  
A vote was then taken on the proposed amendment and 4 
Members voted in favour of the amendment. 
 
Another Member proposed that Option 2 be supported, as 
outlined in the report, and this was seconded. 
 
A vote was then taken on Option 2 and 5 Members voted in 
favour. 
 
The Committee therefore AGREED to recommend that the 
report be accepted and Option 2 be supported, as outlined in 
the report, namely to designate and declare five Local Nature 
Reserves; Sirhowy Hill Woodlands, Beaufort Hill Ponds & 
Woodland, Parc Bryn Bach, Garden City and Central Valley. 
 

No. 8 STREET LIGHTING SERVICE REVIEW 
 
Consideration was given to report of the Head of Community 
Services. 
 
The Team Leader Waste & Fleet Management presented 
the report which provided an update on the Street Lighting 
Review, which was requested following a Members’ Briefing 
in February 2019.  The review consisted of three 
overarching priorities: 
 

 Priority 1 – Financial diligence 

 Priority 2 – Stock management and assets; and 

 Priority 3 – Legislative drivers and performance of the 
service. 

 
The Officer went through the report and highlighted points 
contained therein. 
 
A Member referred to section 2.4 of the report which 
outlined the outputs against Priority 2, and asked whether 
the remaining stock could be used to undertake in-house 
repairs etc.  
 
In response the Officer explained that the Engineering 
Team had significantly reduced over the years, and the type 
of work undertaken had changed to more reactive minor 
repairs, and with major works being contracted out.  

 

Page 9



However, he confirmed that redundant stock was used 
where possible, if it was not obsolete. 
 
A Member referred to insurance claims and asked what 
process was undertaken previously, and whether the 
Council had any outstanding claims. 
 
The Officer said there was no system in place previously.  
The issue was raised at a Members’ briefing session, so the 
Team looked at the system used by Cardiff City Council, 
and mirrored that approach.  The first test case was 
successful, with almost full cost recovery, and other cases 
would be looked at. 
 
A Member referred to the Solar LED lanterns introduced in 
Newtown, Ebbw Vale and the Officer reported that 
unfortunately the amount of sunlight in the Borough was 
insufficient to power the lanterns, but alternative technology 
was being considered. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding capacity within the Team, 
and the Refit Programme, when the Officer confirmed that 
moving to LED lanterns would reduce maintenance 
requirements, and enable the Team to respond to other 
work.   
 
A Member pointed out that the reduction in maintenance 
may impact on future staffing levels.  He also stated that 
changing to LED lanterns should impact significantly on the 
budget.   
 
In response the Head of Community Services said in theory 
it should, but energy prices were increasing at a faster rate 
than the return of implementing energy saving initiatives.  
However, the cost of not undertaking these works would 
prove more expensive in the future. 
 
A further brief discussion ensued when the Officer clarified 
points raised by Members. 
 
The Committee AGREED to recommend that the report be 
accepted and the information contained therein be noted 
(Option 1). 
 

Page 10



No. 9 COMMUNITY SERVICES WORKFORCE SICKNESS 
ABSENCE PERFORMANCE 
 
Consideration was given to report of the Corporate Director 
Regeneration & Community Services. 
 
The Head of Community Services presented the report which 
outlined the Directorate’s sickness absence performance and 
the proposed actions for improvement.  He said whilst 
sickness levels remained high it was important to note that 
the majority of employees have little or no sickness absence 
and attend work regularly, and the vast majority of Council 
employees have excellent attendance levels, as data 
indicated that 2,463 employees attended work every day 
during the period from April 2018 to March 2019 with the 
Council having an attendance level of 94.3%. 
 
In terms of actions for improvement, the Officer said whilst 
there was evidence of managerial action in managing 
sickness the Directorate acknowledged that better use of the 
iTrent system was required.  A number of actions had been 
agreed, as outlined in Section 4.1 of the report, and these 
would be monitored by the Directorate Management Team, 
and sickness absence would continue to be a regular item on 
the Management Team Agenda. 
 
A Member said more information was needed in terms of 
recording return to work meetings on the iTrent system.   
 
In response the Officer said the report was populated by 
Organisational Development, and it was the first time for the 
report to be presented in this format.  He confirmed that 
return to work meetings were taking place, but in some 
instances were not being reported through the iTrent system. 
He confirmed that the Member’s comments would be raised 
with OD.  
 
A discussion ensued when the Corporate Director said it was 
important to note that return to work meetings were being 
undertaken, and Managers were complying with the 
Attendance Management Policy.  However, there were some 
areas within the Directorate that were unable to access the 
system, and this was being looked at, but he assured that 

 

Page 11



return to work meetings were being undertaken, albeit not 
recorded on iTrent. 
 
The Chair said the format of the report needed further 
consideration to ensure we get the information needed, and 
it would also be interesting to see what other Scrutiny 
Committees thought of the format. 
 
The Committee AGREED to recommend that the report be 
accepted and having scrutinised the sickness absence 
performance information and proposed arrangements to 
improve attendance rates within the Regeneration & 
Community Services Directorate discussed further areas for 
improvement in order to drive forward performance 
improvement (Option 1). 
 

No. 10 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME – 27TH FEBRUARY, 
2020 
 
Consideration was given to the Forward Work Programme for 
the meeting scheduled for the 27th February, 2020. 
 
The Committee AGREED that the report be accepted. 
 

 

 

Page 12



Document is Restricted

Page 13

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Cofnodion Pwyllgor Craffu Gwasanaethau Cymunedol
	5 Adolygiad Gwasanaeth
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3


